

Behaviour Policy and Statement of Behaviour Principles

Version Control

Version	V1.1			
Ratified by	Full Governing Body			
Owner	Julie Cordingley			
Date Issued	September 2024			
Review Date	Spring Term 2025			
Target	All Stakeholders			

Location Shared: Adel Primary Policy and Procedure library - one drive

Change History

Version	Owner	Change Summary	Document Date		
V1.0	Julie Cordingley	First Draft Mar			
V1.1	Julie Cordingley	Additional content added to include sexual harassment and sharing of nudes / semi-nudes.			
V1.1	Julie Cordingley	Reapproved	March 2023		
V1.2	Julie Cordingley	Amended chart	September 2024		

Contents

1. Aims	4
2. Legislation and statutory requirements	
3. School Rules and expectations of Behaviour for Learning	
4. Definitions	5
5. Bullying	6
6. Roles and responsibilities	7
7. Pupil code of conduct	8
8. Rewards and sanctions (consequence)	8
9. Behaviour management	10
10. Pupil transition	11
11. Training	11
12. Monitoring arrangements	11
13. Links with other policies	12
Appendix 1 - Written Statement of Behaviour Principles	13
Appendix 2 - Whole School behaviour Strategy	15
Appendix 3 - Physical Intervention Form	17

1. Aims

At Adel Primary School, we believe good behaviour is essential for successful teaching and effective learning. We approach behaviour positively and in doing so strive to create a happy, caring school environment where everyone feels valued, respected and safe.

Setting high expectations for behaviour throughout every aspect of the school day is an integral part of upholding our school values and maintaining positive attitudes.

This policy applies throughout our school day including break times and lunchtimes, including any extracurricular clubs and activities. This policy applies to the Adel Primary School Out of School Club.

This policy aims to:

- Provide a consistent approach to behaviour management.
- **Define** what we consider to be unacceptable behaviour, including bullying.
- Outline how pupils are expected to behave.
- Summarise the **roles and responsibilities** of different people in the school community with regards to behaviour management.
- Outline our system of rewards and sanctions.

2. Legislation and statutory requirements

This policy is based on advice from the Department for Education (DfE) on:

- Behaviour and discipline in schools
- Searching, screening and confiscation at school
- The Equality Act 2010
- Use of reasonable force in schools
- Supporting pupils with medical conditions at school

It is also based on the special educational needs and disability (SEND) code of practice.

In addition, this policy is based on:

- Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, which outlines a school's duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of its pupils.
- Sections 88-94 of the <u>Education and Inspections Act 2006</u>, which require schools to regulate pupils' behaviour and publish a behaviour policy and written statement of behaviour principles, and give schools the authority to confiscate pupils' property.
- <u>DfE guidance</u> explaining that maintained schools should publish their behaviour policy online.

3. School Rules and expectations of Behaviour for Learning

Our Behaviour Policy is built around our Whole School Rules and our expectations for Behaviour for Learning.

Both documents are an integral part of promoting positive behaviour at Adel Primary School and underpin the values of our school.

The school rules were written in collaboration with the children, these are:

Whole School Rules

- S (Safety) We keep our hands and feet to ourselves.
- U (Understanding) We only say kind words to each other.
- P (Prepared) We arrive at school on time and ready to learn.
- **E (Effort)** We always try our best and make the right choices.
- R (Respect) We are kind, polite, honest and use good manners.

These are shared regularly with the children and are displayed and referred to throughout the school day, to encourage and empower children in making the right behavioural choices for themselves.

The **Behaviour for Learning** expectations are represented in three age-appropriate grids, Key Stage 1, Lower Key Stage 2 and Upper Key Stage 2.

They are designed to support children in recognising how their behaviour impacts upon their learning and to improve their ability to make the right choices in regard to their attitudes, approach and response to others. The Behaviour for Learning grids are attached in Appendix 2.

4. Definitions

Within our Whole School Behaviour Strategy, behaviour is defined as Exceptional, Great, Good, Below Expectation and Disruptive

Exceptional behaviour is defined as:

- Exceptional effort in learning.
- Consistently following school rules with behaviour having a positive impact on others. The individual is a role model for peers.

Great behaviour is defined as:

- Great effort in learning on task and focussed for the majority of the time
- Following school rules and always making the right behaviour choices.

Good behaviour is defined as:

- Good effort in learning on task and focussed most of the time
- Following school rules and mostly making the right behaviour choices.

Below expectation behaviour is defined as:

- Not always following the school rules and making the wrong behaviour choices.
- Distraction in lessons, minor disruption in lessons, at break or lunchtimes
- Deliberate non-completion of classwork or homework

Disruptive behaviour is defined as:

- Not adhering to school rules and consistently making the wrong behaviour choices.
- Disruptive behaviour in lessons, break and lunchtimes
- Refusal to comply with requests and instructions from adults.

Unsafe or aggressive behaviour

In addition to these types of behaviour, we also recognise the following behaviours as non-negotiable behaviours.

Non – Negotiable Behaviour is defined as:

- Any form of bullying including face to face and online bullying
- Physical aggression
- · Offensive language
- Vandalism
- Theft
- Racist, sexist, homophobic or discriminatory behaviour
- Sexual harassment/violence including the sharing of nudes and/or semi-nudes.
- Possession of any article a staff member reasonably suspects has been, or is likely to be, used to commit an offence, or to cause personal injury to, or damage to the property of, any person (including the child)

A child displaying these behaviours will be sent directly to a member of the Senior Leadership Team and all such incidents will be recorded on CPOMS which is the school's formal mechanism for recording such behaviours and parents will be informed.

5. Bullying

Bullying is defined as the repetitive, intentional harming of one person or group by another person or group, where the relationship involves an imbalance of power.

Bullying is, therefore:

- Deliberately hurtful
- Repeated, often over a period of time
- Difficult to defend against

Bullying can include, but is not limited to:

Type of bullying	Definition
Emotional	Being unfriendly, excluding, tormenting
Physical	Hitting, kicking, pushing, taking another's belongings, any use of violence
Racial	Racial taunts, graffiti, gestures

Sexual	Explicit sexual remarks/harassment, display of sexual material, sexual gestures, unwanted physical attention, comments about sexual reputation or performance, or inappropriate touching				
Direct or indirect verbal	Name-calling, sarcasm, spreading rumours, teasing				
Cyber-bullying	Bullying that takes place online, such as through social networking sites, messaging apps or gaming sites				

Details of our school's approach to preventing and addressing bullying are set out in our Anti-Bullying Policy available on the school website https://www.adelprimary.org.uk/policies/

6. Roles and responsibilities

6.1 The governing board

The governing board is responsible for reviewing and approving the written statement of behaviour principles (appendix 1).

The governing board will also review this behaviour policy in conjunction with the headteacher and monitor the policy's effectiveness, holding the headteacher to account for its implementation.

6.2 The headteacher

The headteacher is responsible for reviewing this behaviour policy in conjunction with the governing board, giving due consideration to the school's statement of behaviour principles (Appendix 1). The headteacher will also approve this policy.

The headteacher will ensure that the school environment encourages positive behaviour and that staff deal effectively with poor behaviour, and will monitor how staff implement this policy to ensure rewards and sanctions are applied consistently.

6.3 Staff

Staff are responsible for:

- Implementing the behaviour policy consistently
- Modelling positive behaviour
- Providing a personalised approach to the specific behavioural needs of particular pupils
- Recording behaviour incidents: non-negotiables incidents on CPOMS and disruptive and unfocused in class and whole school behaviour record books
- Discussing behavioural concerns with parents

The senior leadership team will support staff in responding to behaviour incidents.

6.4 Parents

Parents are expected to:

- Encourage and support their child to be able to maintain high standards in relation to our SUPER whole school rules.
- Inform the school of any changes in circumstances that may affect their child's behaviour
- Discuss any behavioural concerns with the class teacher promptly

7. Pupil code of conduct

Pupils are expected, with our support, to understand and respect the behaviour expectations shared across school. They are encouraged to manage their own behaviour positively and make the right choices in accordance to the whole school SUPER rules.

Pupils are expected to:

Adhere to our school SUPER rules

- S (Safety) We keep our hands and feet to ourselves.
- U (Understanding) We only say kind words to each other.
- P (Prepared) We arrive at school on time and ready to learn.
- E (Effort) We always try our best and make the right choices.
- R (Respect) We are kind, polite, honest and use good manners.

This includes to:

- Behave in an orderly and self-controlled way
- Be respectful to adults and each other
- Treat the school buildings and school property with respect
- Wear the correct uniform at all times
- Accept rewards and sanctions when given
- Refrain from behaving in a way that brings the school into disrepute, including when outside school

8. Rewards and sanctions (consequence)

We recognise that praise, encouragement and high expectations are most effective in promoting and maintaining exemplary behaviour. To encourage our children to achieve the SUPER expected levels of good behaviour we use a variety of rewards throughout school.

8.1 Rewards

Positive behaviour will be rewarded at class level with:

- Verbal and/or written praise
- House Points/Dojo Points
- Stickers
- Work shared with another class, teacher or member of SLT.
- In class systems linked to investors in pupil targets
- Special responsibilities

Positive behaviour will be rewarded at whole school level with:

- Winning House Team awards
- Star pupil awards
- Investors in Pupils individual target rewards (e.g. stationery sets)
- 'Spotted' box prizes
- Postcards Home
- 100% individual attendance certificate
- Highest class attendance award (Bobby Bear)

8.2 Sanctions (consequence)

Whilst the majority of our pupils will meet our expectations for the majority of the time, there will be occasions when they make inappropriate choices. Just as we reward pupils for good behaviour choices, it is important that they understand there are consequences for inappropriate choices.

Staff ensure pupils will have ample opportunities to correct their behaviour themselves before any warnings or consequences are given and will use a range of verbal and non-verbal strategies to address behaviour. These may include:

- praise for what is going well and redirecting what isn't
- proximal praise (praising a nearby child)
- a disapproving look or non-verbal signal
- standing close to the child so they know they can be seen

Following these prompts if the behaviour continues the *ATC approach* will be implemented.

First- Ask the child to stop/ correct their behaviour

If the behaviour continues

 Second- Tell the child to stop/ correct their behaviour ad warn that a further incident will result in a consequence

If the behaviour continues

Third- Consequence. Tell the child that as a result of their chosen behaviour there will be a consequence

Consequences should match the level of wrongdoing, be approached fairly and support children in making the right choices in the future. The children believe such consequences should be:

- Miss an appropriate amount of break time and, whilst supervised, write out the school rule relating to their wrong choice. See whole school strategy Appendix 3
- Complete work away from their peers for a time limited period i.e. within their own classroom or in another classroom
- Miss a privilege free choice etc.
- During out of school club, extracurricular clubs or activities and during lunch time the consequence will be applied immediately through the child having supervised 'time out' of the activity

Where behaviour is classed as disruptive, the following consequences and strategies may be applied:

- Loss of break times with peer group for an extended period
- Daily report card
- Behaviour support plan
- Pupil sent to a supervised isolation area during lessons where they will be expected to complete the same work as they would in class.

School will work closely with parents to ensure that strategies are communicated clearly.

8.3 Off-site behaviour

Sanctions may be applied where a pupil has misbehaved off-site when representing the school, such as on a school trip or on the bus on the way to or from school.

9. Behaviour management

.

9.1 Classroom management

Teaching and support staff are responsible for setting the tone and context for positive behaviour within the classroom. Pupils also contribute to this through our Investors in Pupils initiative.

Staff will:

- Create and maintain a stimulating environment that engages pupils
- Follow the Investors in Pupils initiative; promoting and displaying the School SUPER rules, Class visions, Pupil promises and teacher promise in classrooms, as well as the class SMART target and individual pupil targets.
- Develop positive relationship with pupils, which may include:
 - Greeting pupils in the morning/at the start of lessons
 - Establishing clear routines
 - Communicating expectations of behaviour both verbally and through use of Investors in Pupils strategies
 - o Highlighting and promoting good behaviour
 - o Promoting good manners and mutual respect
 - o Concluding the day positively and starting the next day afresh
 - Addressing low-level disruption promptly
 - Using positive reinforcement

9.2 Physical restraint

In some circumstances, staff may use reasonable force to restrain a pupil to prevent them:

- Causing disorder
- Hurting themselves or others
- Damaging property

Incidents of physical restraint must:

Always be used as a last resort

- Be applied using the minimum amount of force and for the minimum amount of time possible and using approved Team teach techniques
- Be used in a way that maintains the safety and dignity of all concerned
- Never be used as a form of punishment
- Be recorded and reported to parents on a Restrictive physical Intervention form (appendix 4) and on the school's recording system CPOMs.

9.3 Confiscation

Any prohibited items found in pupils' possession (dangerous or illegal items) will be confiscated. These items will not be returned to pupils.

We will also confiscate any item which is harmful or detrimental to school discipline. These items will be returned to pupils after discussion with senior leaders and parents, if appropriate.

Searching and screening pupils is conducted in line with the DfE's <u>latest guidance on searching</u>, <u>screening</u> and <u>confiscation</u>.

9.4 Pupil support

The school recognises its legal duty under the Equality Act 2010 to prevent pupils with a protected characteristic from being at a disadvantage. Consequently, our approach to challenging behaviour may be differentiated to cater to the needs of the pupil.

The school's special educational needs co-ordinator will evaluate a pupil who exhibits challenging behaviour to determine whether they have any underlying needs that are not currently being met.

Where necessary, support and advice will also be sought from specialist teachers, an educational psychologist, medical practitioners and/or others, to identify or support specific needs.

When acute needs are identified in a pupil, we will liaise with external agencies and plan support programmes for that child. We will work with parents to create the plan and review it on a regular basis.

10. Pupil transition

To ensure a smooth transition to the next year, pupils have transition sessions with their new teacher(s). In addition, staff members hold transition meetings.

To ensure behaviour is continually monitored and the right support is in place, information related to pupil behaviour issues may be transferred to relevant staff at the start of the term or year. Information on behaviour issues may also be shared with new settings for those pupils transferring to other schools.

11. Training

Policies and practice regarding managing behaviour and whole school strategies is shared with staff as part of their induction process. Staff are given access to Team Teach training, with key staff members identified to support colleagues in school when required with individual children.

Behaviour management will also form part of continuing professional development.

12. Monitoring arrangements

This behaviour policy will be reviewed by the headteacher and full governing board every two years. At each review, the policy will be approved by the headteacher.

The written statement of behaviour principles (appendix 1) will be reviewed and approved by the full governing board every two years.

13. Links with other policies

This behaviour policy is linked to the following policies:

- Safeguarding policy
- Anti-Bullying Policy
- Care & Control Policy
- Online Safety Policy
- Absconding Policy
- Home School Agreement

Appendix 1 - Written Statement of Behaviour Principles

ADEL PRIMARY SCHOOL

Written Statement of Behaviour Principles, Approved by the Governing Body on April 2024 Next due for review on April 2025

The Education and Inspections Act 2006 and DfE guidance document for governing bodies (Behaviour and Discipline in Schools, 2015) requires the governing body to make and frequently review a written statement of general behaviour principles to guide the Headteacher in determining measures to promote good behaviour.

Introduction:

This is a statement of principles, not practice.

Practical applications of these principles are the responsibility of the Headteacher.

The Governors at Adel Primary School, believe that high standards of behaviour lie at the heart of a successful school and enable children to make the best possible progress in all aspects of their school life.

At Adel Primary School, we value everyone as an individual, capable of growth, change and development. Our relationships are underpinned by the principles of justice, equality, mutual respect, fairness and consistency. We have high expectations that support the development of our pupils as effective and responsible citizens.

The purpose of this statement is to give guidance to the Headteacher in drawing up the Behaviour Policy by stating the principles the Governors expect to be followed. The Headteacher has a duty to publish the statement on the school website.

The Headteacher will develop the Behaviour Policy with reference to the DfE guidance document Behaviour and Discipline in Schools – Advice for Headteachers and School Staff, January 2016.

Principles:

- All children, staff and visitors have the right to feel safe at all times at school and procedures should consider the requirements of the Education Act 2002 in relation to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children.
- Adel Primary School is an inclusive school. Bullying or harassment of any description is unacceptable. All members of the school community should be free from discrimination of any sort. Measures to protect children should be set out in the Behaviour and Equality policies, reflecting the duties of the Equality Act 2010.

- The Governors believe children should be at the heart of the development of school rules and these should be regularly reviewed with the involvement of the School Council and in consultation with staff and parents.
- High standards of behaviour are expected. The school rules should be clearly set out in the Behaviour Policy and displayed around school. Governors expect these rules to be consistently applied by all staff.
- Governors would like to see a wide range of rewards, consistently and fairly applied in such a way as to encourage and reward good behaviour around school.
- Sanctions for unacceptable/poor behaviour should be known and understood by all staff and pupils, consistently applied and regularly monitored to ensure effective impact.
- It is recognised that the use of rewards and sanctions must have regard to the individual situation and the individual student and the Headteacher is expected to use discretion in their use. Sanctions should however be applied fairly, consistently, proportionally and reasonably, taking into account special educational needs and disability and the needs of vulnerable children. Support and assessment from external agencies should be available support as necessary for pupils who display continued disruptive behaviour.
- We believe children should be given opportunities and openly encouraged to support each other in the process of positive reinforcement and personal growth, learning and recognising good behaviour.
- We expect pupils and parents to cooperate to maintain an orderly climate for learning.
- The Governors strongly feel that exclusions, particularly those that are permanent, must only be used as the very last resort.
- The Governors wish to emphasise that violence, threatening behaviour or abuse by pupils or parents towards the school's staff will not be tolerated. If a parent does not conduct himself/herself properly, the school may ban them from the school premises and, if the parent continues to cause disturbance, he or she may be liable to prosecution.
- The Governors expect the Headteacher to include guidance and clarification for staff on their powers to search (for banned items), to use of reasonable force (make physical contact with children), and to discipline pupils for misbehaviour outside school (including notifying the police) witnessed by a member of staff or reported to school when:
 - Taking part in school organised or related activity
 - Travelling to or from school
 - o Wearing school uniform or in some other way identifiable as a pupil

Signed- Chair of Governors Diane Hallas

Appendix 2 - Whole School behaviour Strategy

	Behaviour is Exceptional	I'm going above and beyond and am a role model to others	Star Pupil Award House points awarded		
<u></u>	Behaviour is Great	I'm giving it my best shot	Visit to member of SLT House points awarded		
·	Behaviour is Good	I'm on track I'm following the school rules	Class Teacher praise House points awarded		
		ASKTELL			
		CONSEQUENCE			
•••		Loss of 5 mins break time	Break time supervision with		
	Behaviour is Below Expectation (not following the school rules)	Loss of 10 mins break time	member of staff		
		Loss of all break time			
		Loss of day's breaks and reflection sheet with member of teaching staff	Phone call home Class teacher		
	Behaviour is Disruptive (unsafe, disruptive to learning)	Report card (daily log)	Meeting with child's adults & Headteacher		
		Behaviour support plan (agreed strategies in place)	Regular meetings with child's adults, Class teacher & SLT		

Appendix 3 – Physical Intervention Form

Definition of RPI: The positive application of force to overcome rigorous resistance

Name of Child:					
Date:			Time:		
Place:			Class / Year Group:		
Names of st	aff who performed the	e intervention:			
Names of wi	itnesses:				
Reason	for Intervent	tion To prevent a pup	oil from or conti	nuing to:	
Commit a cr	iminal offence	Damage to prop	perty		
Injury to ther	mselves or others	Behaviour preju	dicial to maintainir	ng good order and discipline	
Details	of the incider	nt/behaviour, inc	luding imm	nediate lead up & de-br	<u>ief:</u>
		_			
-					

Amendments (Admin Only):

De-escalation Techniques Used

Verbal Advice & Support	Humour		Distraction / Diversion				
Reassurance	Options Offered/choices		Step Away				
Calm Talking	Time out Offered		Time out Directed Time				
Non-Threatening Body Language	Other de-escalation techniques from pupils PBSP (Please specify)						
Change of Face							

One-person Techniques				Two-person Tecl	hniqu	ies		
	Specify				Small Child Escort/Seate d:			
Bite Resp		Ø min	secs		Specify:	0	min	secs
Hair Resp		o min	secs		Single Elbow	Ø	min	secs
Neck Resp		o min	secs		Single Elbow Seated (Chairs)	Ø	min	secs
Caring C Gu	uide	o min	secs		Single Elbow Seated Floor (After Response to Dead Weight)	0	min	secs
Double Elbo	ow .	min	secs		Figure of Four	O	min	secs
Half-Shield		o min	secs		Two Person Double Elbow	O	min	secs
Other Techr	nique Used (Specif	y with time of	intervention	n):				
							6	min
secs							_ •	

Injuries (Pupil must be checked after the RPI) / Damage caused:

Child Checked by (Name of staff member who checked the pupil):						Injury to staff CF50a Completed?		Yes	:		No	
Referred to First Aider? Yes No												
Referre d to GP Taken to Hospital (Complete a hospital admissions form)				tal								
Injury suffered by child	uffered Yes No				Damage to Property?	mage to Property?					No	
Specify:						Details of Damage Ca	aused:					
Notific	ations											
SLT Informed		Contac	ct with P	arent/Gua	ardian by	Letter / Telephon	ne / No	ote in [Diary	(ple	ease d	circle)
Action	Taken											
Pupil remained in class Ret				Ret	Refurned hubil to class when calm 1 1			Moved to an alternate class			ate	
Complete work missed Exc				Exclusion Referred to Police								
Other Sanction Please specify:												
Staff Signature				Date								

Equality Impact Assessment

		Yes/ No	Comments
1.	Does the policy / guidance affect one group less or more favourably than another on the basis of:		
	■ age	No	
	disability	No	
	 gender reassignment 	No	
	marriage and civil partnership	No	
	 pregnancy and maternity 	No	
	■ race	No	
	religion or belief	No	
	• sex	No	
	sexual orientation	No	
2.	Is there any evidence that some groups are affected differently?	No	
3.	If you have identified potential discrimination, are any exceptions valid, legal and/or justifiable?	n/a	
4.	Is the impact of the policy/ guidance likely to be negative?	No	
5.	If so, can the impact be avoided?	n/a	
6.	What alternatives are there to achieving the policy/ guidance without the impact?	n/a	
7.	Can we reduce the impact by taking different action?	n/a	